
AGENDA 
COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
May 28, 2019 

1:00 pm 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

B. DELEGATIONS

1. Keith Bott, Riverdale Resources
- Email from Keith Bott, received on May 17, 2019

C. MINUTES/NOTES

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes
- May 14, 2019

2. Council Meeting Minutes
- May 14, 2019

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1
a) Crowsnest Pincher Creek Landfill Meeting Minutes – April 10, 2019
b) Joint Funding Committee
c) Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
d) Intermunicipal Development Plan with Cardston County
e) Pincher Creek Community Foundation

2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2

3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3
a) Castle Mountain Community Association (CMCA)
b) Family & Community Support Services (FCSS)

a. News Release on Town Bussing
b. SASCI article on “Life without Shell”
c. SASCI letter on Economic Future for Southwest Alberta

c) Intermunicipal Development Plan
d) Matthew Halton High School graduation

4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4

5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5

G. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S (CAO) REPORTS

1. Operations

a) Operations Report
- Report from Operations, dated May 23, 2019
- Public Works Call Log, dated May 23, 2019

b) Beaver Mines Drainage
- Report from Operations, dated May 22, 2019

c) New Yard Lighting for Public Works
- Report from Operations, dated May 23, 2019

d) Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Update Handout
- Handout for Councils remarks, dated May 23, 2019

A

AdminReception
Highlight

AdminReception
Highlight



2. Development and Community Services

a) Agricultural and Environmental Services Activity Report
- Report dated May 9, 2019

3. Finance
- NIL

4. Municipal

a) Chief Administrative Officer Report
- Report from CAO, dated May 9, 2019

b) RMA Advocated for Municipal Authority on Road Permits
- Background to Council, dated May 10, 2019

H. CORRESPONDENCE

1. For Action

a) Correspondence Items for Action
- Recommendation to Council, dated May 23, 2019, covering:

- Heritage Acres letter of request, received May 22, 2019
- Town of Pincher Creek Volunteer Appreciation BBQ request, received May 23, 2019

2. For Information

a) Informational Correspondence
- Recommendation to Council, dated May 23, 2019, covering:

- Elkford Wildcat Days invitation to parade, received May 17, 2019
- Raymond Stampede invitation to parade, received May 15, 2019
- Highway 3 Twinning Update, received May 16, 2019
- Community Foundation letter, received May 17, 2019
- News Release: Throne speech sets stage to get Alberta working, email received May

22, 2019
- Seniors Week Declaration, received May 22, 2019
- Notice of Withdrawal of Appeal, dated May 22, 2019
- Invitation to Attend Open House, letter from Town of Pincher Creek received May 23,

2019
- Seniors Council Chat, invitation from Town of Pincher Creek

I. CLOSED MEETING SESSION

J. NEW BUSINESS

K. ADJOURNMENT



B



C1







MINUTES  9133 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

COUNCIL MEETING 
MAY 14, 2019 

The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday, 
May 14, 2019, at 1:00 pm, in the Council Chambers of the Municipal District Administration Building, 
Pincher Creek, Alberta. 

PRESENT Reeve Brian Hammond, Councillors Quentin Stevick, Rick Lemire, Bev Everts, and Terry 
Yagos 

STAFF Chief Administrative Officer Troy MacCulloch, Director of Operations Aaron Benson, 
Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, Director of Finance 
Meghan Dobie, Jessica McClelland and Executive Assistant Tara Cryderman 

Reeve Brian Hammond called the Council Meeting to order, the time being 1:02 pm. 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Quentin Stevick    19/213

Moved that the Council Agenda for May 14, 2019 be approved, as presented.

Carried 

B. DELEGATIONS

1. Family and Community Support Services (FCSS)

David Green, with FCSS, attended the meeting to update Council on the Grants Program
and the Administrative Agreement.

A powerpoint presentation was shown and explained.

The Agreement was discussed. It was requested that the MD review the current agreement
to determine if amendments are required.

C. MINUTES

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes

Councillor Rick Lemire    19/214

Moved that the Council Committee Meeting Minutes of April 23, 2019 be amended, the
amendment as follows:

Addition to Roundtable – Division 3 – “Upcoming Trade Show, and participation in future
trade shows”;

And that the Council Committee Minutes be approved, as amended.

Carried 

2. Council Meeting Minutes

Councillor Terry Yagos   19/215

Moved that the Council Meeting Minutes of April 23, 2019 be approved, as presented.

Carried 

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

Nil

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

C2



9134 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
May 14, 2019 
 

 
F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS 

 
1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1 

a) Agricultural Service Board 
- Minutes of April 4, 2019 

  
2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2 

a) Destination Management Organization Update 
- Email dated May 2, 2019, with Presentation 

b) Library Board Meeting 
- Grand Opening  
- Budget concerns 

 
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3 

a) Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance 
- Minutes from April 10, 2019 
- Bulletin May 2019 
- Annual General Meeting Invitation – June 5, 2019 

   
4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4 

a) Mayors and Reeves Meeting 
b) Executive Meeting of the Summer Games Committee 
c) Day of Mourning Memorial Event 
d) Pincher Creek Foundation 

 
5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5 

a) Emergency Services Commission 
b) Patton Park Tour 
c) Kootenai Brown Museum Open House 
d) Lundbreck Citizens Council 

 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    19/216 
 
Moved that the committee reports be received as information. 
 
       Carried 
 

G. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S (CAO) REPORTS  
 
1. Operations  

  
a) Policy C-PW-009 – Dust Control 

 
Councillor Terry Yagos  19/217 
 
Moved that Council adopt Corporate Policy C-PW-009 – Dust Control; 
 
And that Schedule A be amended, the amendments as follows: 
 

- Deletion of #19 – Summerview Road 
- Deletion of #28 – RR 29-1 South of Hwy 785 
- Addition of Twp Rd 7-2B (750m); 

 
And that Council approve the 2019 rate for dust control posted in Policy 
C-FIN-529, to remain the same at $250.00 for residential and $600.00 for 
commercial.  
     Carried 

  



9135 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
May 14, 2019 
 

b) Regional Water and Wastewater Project Briefing 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos  19/218 
 
Moved that the Regional Water and Wastewater Project Briefing, dated 
May 8, 2019, be received, as information.  
 
     Carried 
      

c) Operations Report  
 

Councillor Bev Everts    19/219 
 
Moved that the Operations report for the period dated April 17, 2019 to 
May 9, 2019, as well as the Call Log, be received as information.  
 

      Carried  
 

2. Development and Community Services 
 

a) Amendment to Policy C-FIN-529 – Fees and Charges 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick   19/220 
 
Moved that Council amend Policy C-FIN-529 – Fees and Charges – to reflect the 
following: 
- The integration of the Solar Watering Unit into the regular AES rental fleet for a 

fee of $150.00 per two-week period, plus damage deposit 
- The addition of the Electric Fencing Unit into the regular AES rental fleet for a 

fee of $150.00 per two-week period, plus damage deposit 
 

     Carried 
 

b) Agricultural and Environmental Services Activity Report 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos  19/221 
 
Moved that the Agricultural and Environmental Services Activity Report for the 
period of April 18, 2019 to May 9, 2019, as well as the call logs, be received as 
information.  
     Carried 
 

c) Road Closure Request – NE 6-6-1 W5M 
 
Councillor Rick Lemire declared a potential conflict of interest, as he is an employee 
of Alberta Transportation, and left the meeting, the time being 3:24 pm.  
 
Councillor Bev Everts   19/222 
 
Moved that the request to close a portion of Road Plan No. 041 0705, located within 
NW 5-6-1 W5M, be approved; 
 
And that the applicant be responsible for all costs associated with the closure, 
purchase and consolidation with their adjacent parcel.  
 
     Carried 

  



9136 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
May 14, 2019 
 

d) Road Closure Bylaw No. 1300-19 – S ½ 21-8-30 W4M 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos  19/223 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1300-19, being the Road Closure Bylaw – 
S ½ 21-8-30 W4M, be given first reading; 
 
And that the required Public Hearing be scheduled for 1:00 pm, on June 25, 2019.  
 
     Carried 
 
Councillor Lemire returned to the meeting, the time being 3:30 pm.  
 

3. Finance 
 

a) Operating Line of Credit – Bylaw No. 1304-19 – Borrowing Bylaw 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick  19/224 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1304-19, being the Borrowing Bylaw be given first reading.  
 
     Carried 
 
Councillor Rick Lemire  19/225 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1304-19, being the Borrowing Bylaw be given second 
reading.  
     Carried 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick  19/226 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1304-19, being the Borrowing Bylaw be presented for third 
reading.  
     Carried Unanimously 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos  19/227 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1304-19, being the Borrowing Bylaw be given third and final 
reading.  
     Carried 

4. Municipal  
 

a) Intermunicipal Collaborative Framework Committee 
 
Councillor Rick Lemire  19/228 
 
Moved that Council appoint Councillors Rick Lemire and Bev Everts, with 
Councillor Quentin Stevick as Alternate, to the Intermunicipal Collaborative 
Framework Committee with the Town of Pincher Creek.  
 
        Carried 
 

b) Cancellation of Summer Meetings  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos  19/229 
 
Moved that the regularly scheduled Council Committee Meeting and Council 
Meetings of July 23, 2019 and August 13, 2019, be cancelled; 
 
And that the Agricultural Service Board Meeting scheduled for August 1, 2019, 
be cancelled; 



9137 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
May 14, 2019 
 

And that the Subdivision Authority and Municipal Planning Commission 
Meetings scheduled for August 6, 2019, be cancelled; 
 
And further that if there is an emergent need to have a meeting during this time, 
that an appropriate date and time be set.  
 

        Carried 
  

c) Request for Funding – Canada Day Fireworks 
 
Councillor Rick Lemire  19/230 
 
Moved that Council contribute $5,000 to the Town of Pincher Creek, for the 
2019 Canada Day Fireworks Celebration, with the funding coming from Grants 
to Groups and Organizations (Account No. 75-0-770-2765). 
 
     Carried   
  

d) Appointment of Fire Guardians 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick  19/231 
 
Moved that Council appoint the following persons as fire guardians for the 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9, for the period March 1, 2019 to 
April 1, 2020: 

- Lori Schill 
- Tammy Jack 
- Nichole Boissoneault 
- Kate Feist 
- David Cox 
- Pat Neumann 
- Lynn Brasnett 

- Richard Claude 
- Anne Molnar 
- Dawn Heerschap 
- Steve Oczkowski 
- Tom Judd 
- Allen Tapay 

Carried 
 

e) Sorting Fees – Crowsnest / Pincher Creek Landfill Association 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick  19/232 
 
Moved that the email from the Crowsnest / Pincher Creek Landfill Association, 
dated May 9, 2019, regarding sorting fees, be received; 
 
And that Council determines that sorting fees be invoiced to the individual 
users, should additional sorting services be necessary.  
 
     Carried 
 

f) Invitation to Waterton Biosphere Reserve Event – 2019 Patagonia 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick  19/233 
 
Moved that any Councillors wishing to attend the 2019 Patagonia Event, hosted 
by Waterton Biosphere Reserve, scheduled for May 25, 2019, be authorized to 
do so. 
 
     Carried 



9138 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
May 14, 2019 
 

g) Chief Administrative Officer’s Report 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos  19/234 
  
 Moved that Council receive for information, the Chief Administrative Officer’s 

report for the period of April 18, 2019 to May 9, 2019.  
 

       Carried 
H. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
1. For Information   

 
a) Informational Correspondence 

 
Councillor Terry Yagos  19/235 
 
Moved that Council receive the following documents as information: 
 
1. Email from Town of Pincher Creek, dated May 7, 2019, regarding events 

scheduled during the Summer Games 
2. Letter from Community Foundation, dated April 24, 2019, regarding the 

Community Priorities Fund 
3. Letter from Southern Alberta Recreation Association, received May 2, 2019, 

regarding bids to host the 2021 and 2022 Summer Games 
4. Email from Alberta SouthWest Regional Economic Development, dated April 

17, 2019, regarding the Southern Alberta Energy Forum 
5. Email from David McNeil, dated April 30, 2019 & response email, dated May 1, 

2019, regarding the Water and Wastewater Project for Beaver Mines 
6. Letter from Community Hall Board, dated April 15, 2019, regarding the 

Community Hall 
7. Letters from AUC, dated May 7, 2019, regarding Applications 23377-A001 to 

23377 – A003 
8. Email from AltaLink, dated April 17, 2019, regarding Chapel Rock to Pincher 

Creek Transmission Development 
9. Letter from Plains Midstream, dated March 26, 2019, regarding the 2018 Report 

to Stakeholders & Communities 
     Carried 
 

I. CLOSED MEETING SESSION 
 
Council did not close the meeting to the public.  
 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

There was no new business presented for discussion. 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos    19/236 

 
Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 4:16 pm. 
 
       Carried 

 
 

              
     REEVE 

 
 

       
      CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



F1a







F3ba



F3bb



-Tax revenues to the MD of Pincher Creek will decline by over 20 per cent. 

-An estimated 265 high-paying full-time jobs will be lost at the facility and other local businesses, 
affecting eight per cent of the current local labour force. 

-As many as 650 people could leave the region as workers and their families relocate, affecting 
up to nine per cent of the current local housing stock. 

While these effects are undeniably alarming, SASCI hopes the report will catalyze people to act. 

"This [report] is intended to give the community [information] about what the future looks like so we 
can make informed decisions about what, if anything, we should do about it ," says Celesa Horvath , 
former SASCI chairwoman and report originator. 

"We can either let this happen without doing anything ," she continues, "or, we can think as a 
community about what we want the future to look like and take action now, while we have the time, 
to mitigate those impacts, and better position us to transition to a post-Waterton future ." 

You can find the full impact report at www.sasci.ca. 

In January, Shell announced it had put its sour gas assets in central and southern Alberta -
including Shell Waterton - up for sale, which could change the anticipated timeline and impact of 
the complex closure . · 

At that time, Rej Tetrault , general manager for Foothills and Groundbirch with Shell Canada , stated 
that a buyer could potentially invest in some of the wells to extend the life of the plant. 

The company reiterated that "If there are no qualified buyers, Shell will continue to operate the 
site. " 

On Monday, Tara Lemay, head of media relations for Shell Canada, said there are still no 
immediate plans for closure , and no significant updates on the potential sale. 

SASCl's report was prepared prior to the January sale announcement and recognizes there could 
be changes to the timeline or plans. "Due to this uncertainty, " it cautions, "forecasted future 
conditions should be treated as estimates only and not as certain outcomes. " 

"It's not about what we stand to lose, but what we stand to gain" 

Celesa and the current SASCI chairman, James Van Leeuwen , say the most important thing 
people need to do when responding to these findings is not to be afraid, but to see the report for 
the rare opportunity it provides. 

The pair, who have decades of combined experience in rural community development, say that 
when a major industry leaves a community, it tends to happen suddenly - think of General 
Motors' decision last year to shut down its flagship plant in Oshawa by the end of this year. 





James and Celesa both say that if the community can collectively figure out how to mitigate the 
impact of Shell leaving, it could serve as an example to many other towns and villages across the 
country that are struggling in similar ways. 

How to be part of the transition 

Right now, SASCl 's main focus is connecting with community champions and key organizations 
that can help build up public will to tackle this issue, so the work is in its early stages. 

Once it's able to build up a network and brainstorm a bit, though , the plan is to bring some 
concrete development ideas forward to the community, which SASCI may or may not spearhead. 

James and Celesa are both adamant that whatever comes from this report , it must be organic and 
come entirely from the community - and if it becomes apparent that SASCI is not the ideal leader 
moving forward, it will shift into more of a support role for whatever projects the community wants 
to undertake. 

James invites anyone who feels they can contribute to this transition effort, on either a personal or 
an organizational level , to reach out to SASCI , and stay tuned for opportunities to weigh in on 
options once more tangible ideas come together. 

Updates regarding the sale of Shell 's Waterton Complex will be reported as information is made 
availab 



F3bc



G1a





G1a









Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: Beaver Mines Drainage 

PREPARED BY: Aaron Benson DATE: May, 22, 2019 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works and Services 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Date 
1. MPE Engineering fee proposal 

APPROVALS: 

Aaron Benson ,::;,q__ Troy )\1acCulloch 

----4dt/tL- ·--May 22, 2019 
--------

Department Director Date CAO Date 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That council approve funding for consultant and Beaver Mines Drainage as an addition to the 
Beaver Mines - Distribution and Collection Project. 

BACKGROUND 
Requesting Council to approve consultant fees for $36,100 (Exel. GST). Fee proposal would have MPE 
Engineering design and prepare storm water drainage drawings and specifications for Beaver Mines as an 
addition to the Beaver Mines - Distribution and Collection Project. 

Tendering by contractor for Beaver Mines drainage would be required with a proposed completion date at 
the end of 2020. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Beaver Mines - Distribution and Collection Project would include surface drainage rehabilitation and 
upgrade are required as per the project. 

Presented to: Council Meeting 
Date of Meeting: May 28, 2019 

Page 1 of 1 

G1b







Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: New Yard Lighting for Public Works 

PREPARED BY: Aaron Benson DATE: May, 23, 2019 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works and Services 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. SMP Engineering fee proposal 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Aaron Benson 

Department Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Date 2. Reserve Financial Documents 

APPROVALS: 

May 23, 2019 

Date 

~~acCulloch 

~~ ·
CAO 

That council approve funding for consultant and new yard lighting to enhance on property security 
and employee safety 

BACKGROUND: 

Requesting by council for $100,000 (Exel. GST) for consultant fees and new yard lighting. Proposed scope 
of work would incorporate new yard lighting, design and preparation of electrical installation drawings and 
specifications to enhance on property security and safety located on the MD property. 

Tendering by contractor for new yard lighting would be required with a proposed completion date of 
October 2019. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Municipal Sustainability Initiative or Tax Rate Stabilization (No financial impact on MD taxpayers) could 
fund the lighting project. 

Presented to: Council Meeting 
Date of Meeting: May 28, 2019 

Page 1 of 1 

G1c







1 

Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Update - Spring 2019 

Inside this issue 

Map of Connec on Line ..... ……….2 

General Ques ons .............. ……….3 

Connec ng to System ......... ……….4 

Access During Construc on …….. 5 

Financial ............................. ……....6 

Current System   ................. ……….7 

You are  receiving  this package because you are a  resident  in  the Hamlet of Beaver 

Mines. The M.D. of Pincher Creek No. 9 is in the process of installing a water distribu-

tion and wastewater collection system located  in the Hamlet of Beaver Mines. Pro-

posed connection to the system for the landowner is anticipated in 2020.   

This  package of  informa on has  been  compiled  to  assist  you  through  the planning 

process of this project. Included in this package you will find: 

· Land specific service card and property informa on;

· Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Ques on and Answers (Q&A)

· Alberta Government informa on on plugging abandoned wells and

decommissioning sep c tanks

· Beaver Mines Distribu on and Collec on Civil Water Distribu ons site Plan

The M.D.  is going to reach out to residents  in 2019 through council meetings, open 

house  events  and mail  outs  as  necessary  to move  this  project  forward.  Please  use 

your land service card so the M.D. of Pincher Creek No. 9 can start collecting this in-

formation. 

Although the project is the primary focus of this letter. Council will continue to work 

on a  review of  the Municipality’s Utility bylaws  this year –  including discussions on 

rate and fee schedules which will occur during open Council meetings.  In addition, to 

the  water  and  wastewater  services,  the M.D.  is  looking  to  ensure  that  our  storm 

drainage in Beaver Mines is updated and working properly.  

We are also looking to provide water and wastewater services to the Beaver Mines 

park,  increase parking spaces, and add trail  system for  the community,  in consulta-

tion  with  the  Beaver  Mines  community.  Please  monitor  the  M.D.’s  website  at 

www.mdpinchercreek.ab.ca  for  additional  information  on  this  project  or  upcoming 

Council meetings and forward your questions or concerns to  

info@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca. 

Additional information on the Beaver Mines project will be forwarded electronically 

to you in the upcoming months as it is available. The M.D. looks forward in continu-

ing to work with the residents and the Beaver Mines Community Association on this 

project.   

 Sincerely, 

 Troy MacCulloch 

 Chief Administrative Officer 

M.D. of Pincher Creek No. 9



2 

 
 

 

THIS DRAWING MAY HAVE BEEN MODIFIED 

FROM ITS ORIGINAL SIZE. ALL SCALE 

NOTATIONS INDICATED (i.e. 1:1000 etc) 

Water and wastewater line are shown 

for informa on only and are subject 

to change prior to construc on.  



3 

1. Given the Beaver Mines water supply project  is an extension of the Cowley Lundbreck Regional Water System,  
would the M.D. be able to construct a water supply and distribu on system without a wastewater collec on and 
treatment component that would rely on private sep c systems? Short Answer according to Alberta Environment 
(AEP) is, no.  
 
According to the Potable Water Regula ons Sec on 5(3) (a) and (e)  
 
(3) No person shall commence 
 
(a) the extension of a water distribu on system, 
(e) the water distribu on system will service a por on of a city, town, specialized municipality, village, summer vil-
lage, se lement area as defined in the Me s Se lements Act, hamlet, privately owned development, municipal 
development or industrial development that is not serviced by a wastewater system in respect of which a current 
approval or registra on has   been issued under the Act,” 
 

Source: h p://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=2003_277.cfm&leg_type=Regs&isbncln=9780779797820 
              h p://www.qp.alberta.ca/570.cfm 
 

2. What is the location of the new municipal water supply?   

  

Water for Beaver Mines, Castle Parks, and Castle Mountain Resort will come from the Oldman Reservoir. 

  

3. How and where will the water be treated?  

  

The water will be treated in the Regional Water System Treatment plant located north of Cowley.   

A re-chlorination unit in Beaver Mines and at Castle Mountain Resort will ensure that chlorine residual in the 

 water is adequate to ensure sanitization. 

  

4. How and where will the sewage be treated and discharged?   

  

Wastewater  from Beaver Mines will be pumped to the treatment system for ultimate disposal.   The  location and 

type of the wastewater treatment system is yet to be determined. 

  

5. When will the new system be operational?  

  

Depending on decisions by Council and Alberta Environment, the system should be operational at the earliest by fall 

2020. 

  

 



4 

 1. What are the advantages to indicating your intent to connect?  

  

The advantages of connecting in 2020 are numerous including: 

 Work being combined to receive a better quote for the residential component of the project; 

 Council has the ability to charge fees associated with connecting to the system that can be waived for this pro-

ject; 

 Connection to the systems and inspections associated with the project are likely to be combined with multiple 

locations leading to a possible reduction in costs. 

  

2. How many connections will be provided per property?  

  

One set of connections will be provided to each property.  Requests for additional services will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis (i.e. request for a separate service to a garage or a lot being subdivided).  

 

3. Will the MD put in a connection at my property, including vacant land, even if I don’t choose to connect at this 

time?  

 

Connections will be installed to vacant properties as well.  A service for each 50’ lot (approx 5000 sq ft) will be pro-

vided with the location to be centered on the lot at the property line. 

  

4. Will the MD make the connection to my house or just to the property line?  

  

Council is currently considering options that would allow all residents connecting to the system to be connected by 

one contractor.  Council is also looking into how they can assist in funding this component of the project. 

  

5. Will my yard and landscaping need to be excavated or can the connections be directionally drilled?  

  

In most cases, the lines can be directionally drilled to minimize the disturbance in yards. 

 

6. Where will  the  connections be  put  if  I  don’t  have  (or provide)  the  information  requested  in  the  information 

package?  

  

The connections will be put in the center of the lot if no additional information on the existing homes services is 

available. A separation of the service lines at that location will be as per the relevant code. 

 

 7. What will the water pressure in the system be?   

  

The water pressure will be between 60 to 80 psi depending on the location of the home.  

 

  



5 

 1.  When will construction take place within Beaver Mines?  

  

If the necessary decisions are made in 2019, construction in Beaver Mines should occur in 2020 with final paving 

being completed in 2021.  Project to supply water to Castle Parks and Castle Mountain Resort is in progress with a 

scheduled completion date of early 2020. All dates are subject to change due to construction and contractors. The 

M.D. will make every effort to engage the community and ensure that the most relevant information will be avail-

able.  

 

2. How will emergency access be maintained within the community?   

  

The contractors' plan of operations will include phasing of the project to ensure that access to homes and the fire 

hall can be accommodated to the extent possible through the duration of the project to the extent practicable.  

  

3. How will contractors access my property when hookups are made?   

  

The contractors requiring access to your home will need to arrange a schedule with you to provide access.  Coordi-

nation with a neighbour may be required if you are unable to attend when your contractor needs access. 

  

4. What provisions will be made to accommodate the School Bus?  

  

The contractors' traffic accommodation plan will include provisions for the school bus route.  Residents are advised 

that there will be occasions that the route will change because of construction up to and including students getting 

dropped off close to their home rather than in front.  The locations of that drop off will be coordinated with First 

Student Bus and the parents of students will be informed prior to changes being made. 

  

5. What will the MD do to maintain access to homes, businesses and Highway 774 during construction?  

  

The contractor will be required to ensure that all residents have access to their homes through construction.  This 

does not guarantee residents will have access to their driveway on a daily basis, but is intended to ensure residents 

will be able to park near their home while excavation is underway.  

  

6. What kind of disturbance can I expect during construction?   

  

All streets in Beaver Mines will be excavated as part of the process to install water and wastewater services.  Resi-

dents should expect construction noise and dust.  Businesses should be aware that access to their locations will be 

disrupted but that disruptions will be kept to a minimum.  Highway 774 will remain open and a traffic accommoda-

tion plan will be required from the contractor prior to commencement of the work.  Asphalt disturbance to High-

way 774 will be minimized. 



6 

1. What will it cost to connect to the system?  

  

The MD is in the process of requesting get a quote from a contractor to tie homes to the new infrastructure as part 

of the project based on pipe size required and the lineal meters of service required to any given property.  Once 

the quote is received, an estimate for each homeowner can be determined.  The cost to install the services from 

the property line to the home is the homeowner’s responsibility. 

  

2. What will be the monthly utility bill?  

  

The monthly water bill  format and content  is still under consideration by Council.   The Utility bylaw process  is a 

public process that Council will be working through in the next couple of months.  Water meters will be installed to 

allow for consumption-based utility bills. 

  

3. Will my taxes go up if I choose to connect?   

  

It is expected that the property assessment will increase because the service is available to homeowners.  The in-

crease in your assessment will increase taxes payable whether the home is connected to the system or not.  The 

tax assessment process is outside of the utility servicing component. 

  

4. What is the permitting process?  

  

Prior to connec ng to the municipal u li es, the u lity services applica on form included in the homeowner pack-
age must be returned to the M.D.  The contractor installing the services must obtain a plumbing permit from Supe-
rior Safety Codes  for  the work  inside and within 1 meter of  the home.   Superior Safety Codes Lethbridge office 
phone number is 403-320-0734. 
 
 
 
 



7 

 
1. What if I plan to connect and still keep my existing well and/or septic system as a backup/alternate? Are there 

any special requirements around this?  

  

All existing wells are to be isolated from the new potable water system with a backflow prevention device that 

meets the current plumbing code; these devices will require an annual inspection. Alternately, a separate system 

for watering gardens can be maintained. Homes that are connected to the potable water service must be discon-

nected from the existing wastewater septic tank and or field as per Alberta Environment requirements.   

  

2. What if I plan to connect and don’t plan to use my existing well and septic system anymore?  Do I need to for-

mally abandon them? If so, what is required and approximately how much would it cost?  

  

Alberta Environment recommends decommissioning a water well when it will no longer be used to prevent possi-

ble groundwater contamination.  The process and probable cost is dependent on the size and depth of the well. 

Pulling  the  pump  from  the well  and  plugging  the well  from  surface  contaminants  is  a minimum  requirement.  

Septic tanks should be removed or have the water and sludge removed, the tank bottom should be cracked to 

prevent the retention of water and the tank should be collapsed and or filled to landscape level to prevent soil 

settlement. Cesspools should be removed to prevent collapse  in the future. The cost will vary by property, de-

pending on the size, location, and complexity of the system being abandoned.  A general contractor is the best 

source of information on probable cost. 

  

3. Can I hook up to just water or wastewater if I have a holding tank for the other?  

  

This  scenario could be considered by Alberta Environment on a case by case basis but  their preference  is  that 

both services will be provided. 

  

4. What is the plan for the change over from private to the municipal systems?   

  

Once the municipal system has been constructed and is able to be commissioned, the services to homes can be 

tied in.  A plan will be developed with the preferred contractor to ensure that services are maintained at the spe-

cific home. 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 



G2a





G2a





G4a



G4b







H1a



H1b



H2a
































	A. Agenda
	B. Delegation 
	C1. Committee Minutes
	C2. Minutes
	F1a. Landfill Minutes
	F3ba. News Release
	F3bb. SASCI article
	F3bc. SASCI letter
	G1a. Operations Report
	G1a. Call Log
	G1b. Beaver Mines Drainage
	G1d. Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Handout
	G2a. AES Activity Report
	G2a. AES Call Log
	G4a. CAO Report
	G4b. RMA Advocated for Municipal Authority 
	H1a. Heritage Acre Request
	H1b. Town Request Summer Games BBQ
	H2a. Informational Correspondance



